
 1 

MINUTES OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 1999 
 
 
PRESENT: Walter L. Alcorn, Commissioner At-Large  

John R. Byers, Mount Vernon District  
Carl A. S. Coan, Jr., Providence District  
Judith W. Downer, Dranesville District  
Janet R. Hall, Mason District  
Suzanne F. Harsel, Braddock District  
John B. Kelso, Lee District  
Ronald W. Koch, Sully District  
John M. Palatiello, Hunter Mill District  
Alvin L. Thomas, Commissioner At-Large  
Laurie Frost Wilson, Commissioner At-Large 

 
ABSENT: Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District  
 
// 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:15 p.m. by Vice Chairman John R. Byers, in the Board 
Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center at 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035.  
 
// 
 
COMMISSION MATTERS 
 
Commissioner Alcorn noted that the Environment Committee had scheduled a meeting in the 
Board Conference Room on Wednesday, February 24, 1999 at 7:30 p.m.  He said the topic under 
discussion would be stream preservation and its reflection in the Policy Plan. 
 
// 
 
Vice Chairman Byers, in Chairman Murphy's absence, announced that the Seminar Committee 
would meet on Thursday, February 25, 1999 at 7:30 p.m. in the Board Conference Room. 
 
// 
 
Vice Chairman Byers, on behalf of Commissioner Palatiello, stated that the Policy and 
Procedures Committee would meet in the Board Conference Room at 7:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 
March 3, 1999. 
 
// 
 
 



 2 

COMMISSION MATTERS                                                                          February 18, 1999 
 
 
Commissioner Downer MOVED THAT THE PUBLIC HEARING (ON RZ-1998-DR-035, 
EDGEMOORE HOMES LLC) BE DEFERRED TO MARCH 18, 1999. 
 
Commissioners Alcorn and Hall seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Coan, Palatiello, and Thomas not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy 
absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Kelso MOVED THAT WE DEFER (THE PUBLIC HEARING ON ) PCA-C-
448-17, KINGSTOWNE SVD SOUTH LP; KINGSTOWNE LP; AND KINGSTOWNE SVD 
EAST, LP AND FDP-C-448-33, KINGSTOWNE SVD SOUTH, LP, KINGSTOWNE LP; AND 
KINGSTOWNE SVD EAST, LP, TO A DATE OF MAY 6, 1999. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which passed unanimously with Commissioners 
Coan, Downer, and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the 
meeting. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Kelso MOVED (THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION) DEFER THE 
PUBLIC HEARING ON PCA-85-L-046-2 AND FDPA-85-L-046-2, GREENSTAR I., LLC, TO 
FEBRUARY 25, 1999. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which passed unanimously with Commissioners 
Coan, Downer, and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the 
meeting. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Kelso MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION FURTHER DEFER 
THE DECISION ONLY ON PCA-C-448-18 AND FDP-C-448-34, COSCAN WASHINGTON, 
INC., TO A DATE CERTAIN OF MARCH 11, 1999, WITH THE RECORD REMAINING 
OPEN FOR WRITTEN COMMENT. 
 
Commissioner Koch seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Coan, Downer, and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the 
meeting. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Coan MOVED THAT WE FURTHER DEFER THE DECISION (ON RZ-1998-
PR¬023 AND FDP-1998-PR-023 - NATIONAL CAPITAL LAND AND DEVELOPMENT 
CO.) TO A DATE CERTAIN OF MARCH 18, 1999. 



 3 

 



 4 

COMMISSION MATTERS                                                                             February 18, 1999 
 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Downer and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Coan announced that a decision on SE-98-P-030, Peter Klaassen/The Apple Tree, 
Inc., would be made on Thursday, March 4, 1999. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Palatiello, citing unresolved issues, MOVED THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION AGAIN DEFER ITS DECISION ON PCA-77-C-019-2 (1757 BCD LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP) AND PCA-79-C-090 (LFBC NINE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP) TO A DATE 
CERTAIN OF MARCH 17, 1999. 
 
Commissioners Coan, Hall, and Kelso seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioner Murphy absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 
Secretary Harsel established the following order for the agenda items: 
 
1. 2232-V98-25 - FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/ 

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
SE-98-V-061 - FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/ 
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

2. 2232-Y98-23 - FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT & HOUSING AUTHORITY 
3. SEA-86-V-072-3 - BRYANT EARLY LEARNING CENTER 
4. R2-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 

FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
5. CSPA-84-D-049-2 - GGP/HOMART, INC. 
 
This order was accepted without objection. 
 
// 
 
Since the first case was in the Mount Vernon District, Vice Chairman Byers turned the Chair 
over to Secretary Harsel. 
 
// 
 
 



 5 

2232-V98-25 AND SE-98-V-061                                                                February 18, 1999 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
 

2232-V98-25 - FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/ 
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY - Appl. under 
Sect. 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia to permit a mobile & land 
based telecommunications facility on property located at 9900 Furnace 
Rd. on approx. 39,961 sq. ft. of land zoned R-1.  Tax Map 106-
4((1))54pt.  (Concurrent w/SE-98-V-061.)  MOUNT VERNON 
DISTRICT. 
 
SE-98-V-061 - FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/ 
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY - Appl. under 
Sect. 3-104 of the Zoning Ord. to permit a mobile & land based 
telecommunications facility on property located at 9900 Furnace Rd. 
on approx. 39,961 sq. ft. zoned R-1.  Tax Map 106-4((1))54 pt.  
MOUNT VERNON DISTRICT.  JOINT PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Lt. Curt Andrich, Project Manager, Public Safety Radio Upgrade Project, Fairfax County Police 
Department, representing the Department of Information Technology, reaffirmed the affidavit 
dated December 8, 1998.  There were no disclosures by Commission members. 
 
Inda Stagg, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ), presented 
the staff report for SE-98-V-061, a copy of which is in the date file.  She noted that staff 
recommended approval of the application. 
 
David Jillson, Planning Division, DPZ, presented the staff report for 2232-V98-25, a copy of 
which is in the date file.  He noted that staff recommended approval of the application. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn and Mr. Jillson discussed the height of the stack on the Lorton incinerator.  
 
Mr. Jillson responded to a question posed by Commissioner Wilson with regard to a former 
proposal to place telecommunications equipment on the incinerator stack. 
 
In answer to Commissioner Harsel's query, Mr. Jillson said the tower would be located near the 
top of the slope to enhance coverage. 
 
Lt. Andrich stressed the need for a 484-foot tower that would provide the level of coverage 
required to reach into the Mason Neck and Occoquan River areas.  He indicated that the site was 
the last of eight to be built in the County.  With the aid of an overhead projector, he pointed out 
the other seven sites on a map.  Lt. Aldrich advised that the Federal Bureau of Investigation 
(FBI) and the District of Columbia Department of Corrections had expressed an interest in co-
locating at the site.  He noted that the FBI had given the County a letter of intent to remove its 
old tower, which is currently located on the Lorton dairy farm, as soon as they move to the new 
facility.  He  



 6 

 
2232-V98-25 AND SE-98-V-061                                                               February 18, 1999 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
 
presented aerial photos of the proposed tower site and stressed the importance of the tower to the 
public safety community. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Wilson, Lt. Aldrich said there was some 
equipment in place at the site of the Lorton incinerator stack, but it was not tall enough by itself 
to provide the required coverage. 
 
Lt. Aldrich confirmed Commissioner Byers' comments that the tower would be located in the 
landfill area and that an alternative to putting up this tower would be to erect six towers of a 
lower height, some of which would be placed in residential areas.  He said this site would have 
the least amount of impact on residential areas in that part of the County. 
 
Lt. Aldrich, in reply to Commissioner Thomas' query, confirmed that nothing would be built 
above the top of the tower.  He advised, however, that the tower would be strong enough to 
accommodate four more cellular carriers.  He noted that because the County was financing the 
tower under a tax exempt status, no revenue producing equipment could be added until it had 
been paid off, which would be five years from now. 
 
Secretary Harsel asked the representatives from the public safety sector of the County to stand 
and be recognized. 
 
Secretary Harsel called for speakers from the audience, but received no response.  The 
Commission had no comments or questions and staff had no closing remarks; therefore, 
Secretary Harsel closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner Byers for action on 
this item.  (A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Byers MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION FIND THAT THE 
FACILITY PROPOSED IN 2232-V98-25 SATISFIES THE CRITERIA OF LOCATION, 
CHARACTER, AND EXTENT, AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 15.2-2232 OF THE CODE OF 
VIRGINIA, AND IS IN SUBSTANTIAL ACCORD WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
 
Commissioners Kelso and Koch seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Downer and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent 
from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Byers MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE SE-98-V-061, SUBJECT TO THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED FEBRUARY 17, 1999. 



 7 

 
2232-V98-25 AND SE-98-V-061                                                                February 18, 1999 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/  
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
 
Commissioners Kelso and Koch seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Downer and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent 
from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
Secretary Harsel returned the Chair to Vice Chairman Byers.  
 
// 
 

2232-Y98-23 - FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND 
HOUSING AUTHORITY - Appl. under Sect. 15.2-2232 of the Code 
of Virginia to acquire an existing single family dwelling on approx. 
1.89 ac. located at 13525 Leland Road, Centreville, for use as a group 
home.  Tax Map 55-3((2))100.  SULLY DISTRICT.  PUBLIC 
HEARING. 

 
David Jillson, Planning Division, Department of Planning and Zoning, presented the staff report, 
a copy of which is in the date file.  He noted that staff recommended approval of the application. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Thomas regarding the definition of "mental health 
services," Mr. Jillson said members of the Fairfax/Falls Church Community Services Board, who 
were present this evening, could explain. 
 
Jack Clark, Redevelopment and Housing Authority, representing the applicant, requested 
approval of the application. 
 
Wendy Keating, Fairfax/Falls Church Community Services Board, Mental Health Services, a 
crisis care program coordinator, explained that "mental health services" would consist of 
individual and group counseling and therapy.  Commissioner Thomas said he had raised the 
question because of prior concerns expressed by County citizens.  Ms. Keating said no drug care 
would be provided at the proposed facility.  In response to a question posed by Commissioner 
Hall, Ms. Keating indicated that the facility would provide crisis care, not rehabilitation. 
 
Vice Chairman Byers called the first listed speaker and recited the rules for public testimony. 
 
Ed Brazill, President, Alliance for the Mentally III of Northern Virginia, explained the mission 
of his organization and the plight of the many mentally challenged County citizens who were in 
need of group home facilities.  He noted that there was a great gap between the services provided 
by Fairfax County and what was needed.  Mr. Brazil asked the Commission to support the 
Community Services Board in its effort to provide a larger group home on Leland Road.  (A 



 8 

copy of his remarks is in the date file.) 
2232-Y98-23 - FAIRFAX COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT                             February 18, 1999 
AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
In answer to Commissioner Byers' question, Mr. Brazil explained that there were only 148 
persons remaining on the waiting list because hundreds had given up hope and removed their 
names from the list. 
 
Trudy Harsh, 14735 Jarnigan Street, Centreville, related her personal experience with the 
County's mental health services during the treatment of her daughter.  She spoke about the high 
quality of care provided and supported the application. 
 
Gerald Waldman, 1800 Old Meadow Road, Unit 506, McLean, owner of three adjacent 
properties, spoke in support of the application. 
 
James Hart, 13947 Baton Rouge Court, Centreville, representing the Western Fairfax County 
Citizens Association, noted that the Association supported the application, with several 
recommendations relating to transportation improvements.  (A copy of his letter, detailing the 
transportation recommendations, is in the date file.) 
 
There being no additional speakers and further comments or questions from the Commission or 
closing staff remarks, Vice Chairman Byers closed the public hearing and recognized 
Commissioner Koch for action on this case.  (A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Koch MOVED THAT WE FIND THAT THE PROPOSAL BY THE FAIRFAX 
COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY TO ACQUIRE THE 
SUBJECT PROPERTY LOCATED AT 13525 LELAND ROAD IN CENTREVILLE, FOR 
USE AS A GROUP HOME, TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY IN ACCORD WITH THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND IS IN ACCORD WITH SECTION 
15.2-2232 OF THE CODE OF VIRGINIA. 
 
Commissioners Hall and Thomas seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Downer and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent 
from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
The next case was in the Mount Vernon District; therefore, Vice Chairman Byers turned the 
Chair over to Secretary Harsel. 
 
// 
 

SEA-86-V-072-3 - BRYANT EARLY LEARNING CENTER - Appl. 
under Sect. 3-204 of the Zoning Ord. to amend SE-86-V-072 for 



 9 

alternate use of a public facility for a child care center & nursery  
SEA-86-V-072-3 - BRYANT EARLY LEARNING CENTER                   February 18, 1999 
 
 

school to permit an increase in enrollment, a change in hours of 
operation, & site modifications on property located at 2709 Popkins 
Ln. on approx. 23.77 ac. zoned R-2 & HC.  Tax Map 93-3((1))3.  
MOUNT VERNON DISTRICT.  PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Sharon Kelso, Executive Director of United Community Ministries, agent for the applicant, 
reaffirmed the affidavit dated January 25, 1999.  Commissioner Kelso noted that the applicant's 
representative was a member of his family and that he would therefore recuse himself from this 
public hearing.  There were no other disclosures by Commission members. 
 
Commissioner Byers asked Secretary Harsel to ascertain if there were any speakers in the 
audience for this application.  There were none; therefore, Secretary Harsel waived the 
presentations of staff and the applicant, closed the public hearing, and recognized Commissioner 
Byers for action on this case.  (A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Byers RECOMMENDED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD APPROVE SEA-86-V-072-3, SUBJECT TO THE 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS IN APPENDIX 1 OF THE STAFF REPORT. 
 
Commissioners Alcorn, Hall and Wilson seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Downer, Kelso, and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy 
absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Byers MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD APPROVE A MODIFICATION OF TRANSITIONAL SCREENING 
REQUIREMENTS ALONG THE NORTH, EAST, AND WEST PROPERTY LINES TO THAT 
SHOWN ON THE SEA PLAT. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Downer, Kelso, and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the 
meeting. 
 
Commissioner Byers MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD APPROVE A WAIVER OF THE BARRIER REQUIREMENTS ALONG THE 
NORTH, EAST, AND WEST PROPERTY LINES. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Downer, Kelso, and Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the 
meeting. 
 
// 



 10 

 
SEA-86-V-072-3 - BRYANT EARLY LEARNING CENTER                   February 18, 1999 
 
 
At the conclusion of this case, Vice Chairman Byers resumed the Chair. 
 
// 
 

RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC - Appl. to rezone from R-4 
& R-1 to PDH-4 to permit residential development at a density of 2.38 
du/ac & approval of the conceptual development plan on property 
located on the N.W. side of Telegraph Rd., opposite its intersection 
w/d'Evereux Circle Dr. on approx. 13.41 ac. Comp. Plan Rec: 3-4 
du/ac.  Tax Map 91-2((1))17 & 18; 91-4((1))9.  (Concurrent w/FDP-
1998-LE-039.)  LEE DISTRICT. 
 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC - Appl. to approve the 
final development plan for RZ-1998-LE-039 to permit residential 
development on property located on the N.W. side of Telegraph Rd. 
opposite its intersection w!d'Evereux Circle Dr. on approx. 13.41 ac, 
zoned PDH-4.  Tax Map 91-2((1))17 & 18; 91-4((1))9.  (Concurrent 
w/RZ-998-LE-039.)  LEE DISTRICT.  JOINT PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Lynne Strobel, Esquire, with Walsh, Colucci, Stackhouse, Emrich and Lubeley, reaffirmed the 
affidavit dated February 1, 1999.  There were no disclosures by Commission members. 
 
On behalf of Mary Ann Godfrey, who was ill, Donna McNeaIly, Zoning Evaluation Division, 
Department of Planning and Zoning, presented the staff report, a copy of which is in the date 
file. She noted that staff recommended approval of the application. 
 
Ms. Strobel explained that the applicant proposed 32 single-family residential units for a density 
of 2.38 dwelling units per acre (du/ac).  She noted that the Comprehensive Plan called for 
development at 3 to 4 du/ac and that the applicant's proposal was therefore below the planned 
density range.  She added that approximately 11 .39 acres of the subject property were zoned R-4 
and approved for 25 homes which were never built.  She stated that the applicant acquired the 
property and consolidated an adjacent property that was currently zoned R-1.  She said that the 
consolidation resulted in a more efficient lot layout and eliminated a number of concerns 
identified with the previous rezoning, including interparcel access, utility relocation, and 
frontage improvements.  Ms. Strobel pointed out that rezoning to the PDH-4 District would 
allow the applicant to implement a well-designed development plan that was environmentally 
sensitive, including reduction of impervious surfaces and grading as well as an increase in tree 
save area.  She compared the benefits of the applicant's proposal to the previously approved 
rezoning (RZ-86-L-088).  Ms. Strobel noted that the applicant had worked with the Lee District 
Land Use Advisory Committee, made changes to the development plan to meet their concerns, 
and now had the Committee's support.  She commented on other public outreach meetings held 
and reiterated that the proposed development would result in an attractive community in keeping 
with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan and the character of the area.  She 



 11 

explained how the applicant had addressed drainage and problem soils on the site, noting that 
both of these  
RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC                                                      February 18, 1999 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
 
 
issues would be reviewed carefully by the County's engineer's during the site plan approval 
process. 
 
At Commissioner Kelso' request, Allan Baken, engineer for the applicant, explained why the two 
stormwater management ponds shown on the earlier development plan had been reduced to a 
single pond. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Alcorn, Ms. Strobel stated that Proffers 11 and 12 
describing the undisturbed buffer area and the applicant's commitment to tree preservation were 
sufficient and that the similar provisions outlined in the proposed development conditions for the 
final development plan were unnecessary.  Commissioner Alcorn requested staff input and Ms. 
McNeally said staff recommended that the conditions be retained.  Ms. Strobel noted this would 
cause considerable additional expense for the applicant.  She maintained that the proffers were 
detailed and complete as written. 
 
Commissioner Kelso noted that, if this application went forward, it would be his intention to 
request that the site plan be returned to the Planning Commission for administrative review prior 
to the issuance of final permits.  Ms. Strobel noted that the applicant concurred.  He stated that 
the applicant had agreed to stake and mark the limits of clearing and grading and that the Lee 
District's environmental "watchdog," an adjacent property owner, would be on the site to 
observe. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Coan, Ms. Strobel explained that the area marked 
BRL between Lots 7, 8, 9 and 5, 6 was a building restriction line, delineation of which had been 
specifically requested by staff.  She said she would make sure the line was properly identified on 
future plans. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Coan, Ms. McNeally stated, and Ms. Strobel 
confirmed, that the development would have a public street with two cut-de-sacs and a series of 
pipestem lots.  Ms. Strobel noted that use of pipestems reduced the amount of impervious 
surface. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wilson, Ms. Strobel explained that the phrase "as 
permitted by the Fairfax County Zoning Ordinance" had been added to Proffer 13 because there 
were limitations on the height of fences allowed in front yards. 
 
Vice Chairman Byers called the first name on the speakers list. 
 
Jerry Miske, 71 13 Roxann Road, Alexandria, stated that the subject property and surrounding 
area was comprised almost entirely of marine clay.  He commented on previous developments, 
how they had affected surface water runoff, and what attempts had been made to alleviate 



 12 

drainage problems.  He supported the proffer system, but noted that proffers had a way of 
disappearing. 
 
RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC                                                      February 18, 1999 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Byers, Ms. McNeally explained that there had been 
proffers in the previous rezoning application, but that any proffers approved with this new 
application would replace the earlier ones.  She noted that many of the new proffers were just 
updated versions of the old proffers. 
 
Margaret June Caufield, 71 12 Roxann Road, Alexandria, spoke about efforts to contain 
stormwater runoff in the past.  She maintained that the second pond, proposed to be deleted by 
the applicant, was essential to the overall stormwater management plan for the area.  She passed 
around photographs depicting the flooding problems in her back yard. 
 
Reggie Ford, 7100 Roxann Road, Alexandria, read a letter from his next door neighbor, Bronius 
Cikotas, 7104 Roxann Road, Alexandria.  Mr. Cikotas' letter discussed flooding problems in the 
neighborhood and expressed the belief that elimination of the second pond would exacerbate 
those problems.  Mr. Ford concurred with Mr. Cikotas' remarks. 
 
John Stewardson, 71 16 Roxann Road, Alexandria, a neighbor of Mrs. Caulfield's, described 
similar difficulties with flooding in his back yard.  He was also opposed to deletion of the second 
pond. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Hall, Mr. Stewardson said he could possibly 
support the applicant's proposal if the second pond was restored. 
 
Shawn Donnelly, 7038 Roxann Road, Alexandria, spoke in opposition.  He said the applicant's 
proposal was not in the best interests of the surrounding community, but rather an attempt by the 
developer to maximize profits while protecting itself from the damages that would be caused by 
disturbing marine clay.  He maintained that approval of this application would invalidate 
previous proffers that were made to protect the area from harmful development. 
 
Fernando Leon, 7033 Roxann Road, Alexandria, concurred with previous speakers in opposition 
to the application.  He said applicant had not cooperated with citizens in the area or provided 
pertinent geotechnical information in a timely manner. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Kelso, Mr. Leon admitted he had not attended any 
of the information meetings, including the Lee District Land Use Advisory Committee meeting, 
at which the applicant's geotechnical representatives presented their data.  He maintained, 
however, that getting the information verbally at a meeting was not sufficient and that the 
developer did not provide citizens with a copy of a written report. 
 
Steve Bates, 7123 Roxann Road, Alexandria, said he was not opposed to development of the 
subject property, but was opposed to the PDH-4 proposed.  He expressed his concern about 



 13 

deletion of the second pond and the increase in density.  He stated that a lot of time and effort 
went into the proffers for the previous straight R-4 rezoning and that those commitments should 
be honored. 
RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC                                                      February 18, 1999 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
 
 
At Commissioner Kelso's request, in response to questions from Mr. Bates, Ms. McNeally 
explained that proffers ran with the land and that if the PDH-4 zoning was approved and the 
current applicant sold the property, the proffers would still be valid.  She added that the 
Comprehensive Plan recommendation was for residential use only and it would be very unlikely 
that commercial or retail development would occur on the site. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Kelso, Mr. Bates said he could not specifically 
describe the differences between the old proffers and the new ones; however, he thought one 
difference might be insurance and builder's liability. 
 
Michael Kelly, 7022 Roxann Road, Alexandria, read a letter from Supervisor Kauffman 
indicating that the applicant had been instructed to meet with the residents of Roxann Road and 
address their concerns.  He said that deletion of the second pond was certainly a major concern 
that had not been adequately addressed.  He spoke further about drainage problems in the area 
and noted that the new proffers reduced the number of properties that would be inspected for 
damage before and after development of the subject property and would shift the burden of 
restoration from the developer to the property owners. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Byers, Mr. Kelly said he did not believe that 
enlargement and refurbishment of the existing pond would alleviate the flooding problems. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Byers, Ms. McNeally explained that the existing 
pond was off-site. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Kelso, Mr. Kelly said he had not contacted the 
County regarding his concerns about the existing pond, but he believed his neighbors had.  He 
explained that his property was uphill from the subject property. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioners Hall and Byers, Ms. McNeally pointed out the 
location of the second pond approved with the previous rezoning. 
 
Stanley "Clint" Spooner, 7107 Roxann Road, Alexandria, representing the Roxann Road 
Homeowners Association, explained that neither he nor any other Roxann Road residents had 
seen the latest set of proffers.  He added that he was surprised to hear there were meetings 
between the applicant, staff, and others as far back as January of last year when he and his 
neighbors did not hear about the application until June.  He noted that two of the three 
signatories of the letters in support submitted by the applicant were from relatives of the 
Mittendorff's, owners of the additional parcel added by the applicant's consolidation efforts.  He 
stated that letters of opposition had been sent to the Planning Commission from representatives 
of Tartan Village and the WickfordlWellfleet Citizens Association.  (Copies of both letters are in 



 14 

the date file.)  Mr. Spooner said that both letters reiterated the concerns expressed by previous 
speakers, especially the proposed changes to the number of stormwater management ponds and 
the builder's liability for damage to adjacent properties.  He refuted the applicant's contention 
that the  
RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC                                                     February 18, 1999 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
 
 
proposed stormwater management plan with one pond was sufficient and noted that homeowners 
had been complaining to County officials for years to no avail.  He confirmed Mr. Leon's 
statement that the applicant had not offered copies of its engineering data, but noted that the 
study done in connection with the previous rezoning stated that both ponds were necessary to 
control water runoff.  Mr. Spooner explained that the existing pond, located in the adjacent 
Turnberry Mews townhouse development, did not meet County requirements, had never been 
accepted by the County, and therefore was not maintained by the County.  He added that the 
developer of Turnberry had defaulted on its bonds, so there was no clear understanding as to 
who was responsible for the pond.  He agreed with Commissioner Kelso that several community 
meetings had been held.  However, he noted that at each meeting the citizens had asked the 
developer to provide the data upon which its engineers were basing their conclusions so the data 
could be reviewed by an independent engineer, but promises to do so had never been fulfilled.  
He said that the most important difference between the old proffers and the new proffers was the 
developer's liability.  He pointed out that the developer had previously been required to provide 
liability insurance for 25 years to cover damage to adjacent properties caused by the 
development, but the new proffers stated that the applicant was only liable if damage was caused 
by faulty or negligent construction; therefore if it could not be proved the developer was 
negligent, the homeowners were out of luck.  Mr. Spooner said that the unanimous approval by 
the Lee District Land Use Advisory Committee was based on erroneous information, i.e. that the 
County would be liable if damage was caused to adjacent properties.  He explained that he had 
investigated that claim and found it to be untrue, a fact confirmed by a letter from J. Patrick 
Taves, Assistant County Attorney.  (A copy of Mr. Taves' letter is in the date file.) 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Byers, Mr. Spooner explained that the earlier 
engineering study had been done by Rinker-Detwiler at the request of two previous developers, 
Sunc, Inc. and Skyaim, but he did not have a copy of it. 
 
Commissioner Kelso thanked Mr. Spooner and his neighbors for their testimony and commented 
that engineering options had advanced since the previous study. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Hall, Mr. Spooner concurred that the deletion of the 
second pond and the developer's liability were the two major issues, but that there were other 
smaller differences between the two sets of proffers.  He noted that, as pointed out by Mr. Kelly, 
that the new proffers reduced the number of properties that would be inspected for damage 
before and after development.  He said he would be happy to provide the Commission with a 
comparison list. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wilson, Ms. McNeally explained that the proffers 
associated with the previous case had never been implemented because that plan was not 



 15 

developed. 
 
There were no further speakers, comments, or questions and Vice Chairman Byers called on Ms. 
Strobel for a rebuttal statement. 
RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC                                                      February 18, 1999 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
 
 
Ms. Strobel said the applicant had made every effort to meet with citizens and had sent out a 
letter that included a proffer comparison.  She explained that the applicant could not provide 
what it did not have and no geotechnical report was available.  She added that the applicant was 
reluctant to distribute technical data regarding borings and soil profiles to lay persons who did 
not have the expertise to interpret the data.  She noted that the citizens had been encouraged to 
speak with the County's engineers about geotechnical and drainage issues and County planning 
staff about planning and zoning issues.  In summary, she said the applicant had done its best to 
disseminate information.  She asked that Mr. Baken be allowed to further address the stormwater 
management matters. 
 
Commissioner Coan and Ms. Strobel discussed the differences in the proffers concerning the 
applicant's obligations for damages to adjacent properties.  Ms. Strobel explained that the 25-
year insurance referred to in the earlier proffers was no longer available.  Commissioner Coan 
requested that the applicant provide a statement from a licensed insurance broker stating that 
fact. 
 
Commissioners Coan and Kelso discussed the proffer situation.  Commissioner Coan expressed 
the opinion that the citizens in the area had relied on the previous proffers and had good reason 
to be concerned about them no longer being valid. 
 
Commissioner Hall, Ms. Strobel, Commissioner Byers, and Commissioner Kelso further 
discussed the problems of building on marine clay.  Commissioner Kelso pointed out that the 
applicant had gone to the expense of having a geotechnical analysis done, but no formal report 
had been issued and the Geotechnical Review Board (GRB) had not yet been asked to review the 
proposal. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Byers, Ms. Strobel said that if the applicant could 
not get approval from the GRB, the project would not go forward. 
 
Commissioner Coan related a personal experience with homes on problem soils in Prince 
William County and expressed doubt that the 10-year warranty proposed in the new proffers 
would provide sufficient protection. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wilson, Ms. Strobel explained, and Ms. McNeally 
confirmed, that the new Proffer 9 regarding improvements along Telegraph Road was acceptable 
to staff. 
 
At Ms. Strobel's request, Mr. Baken pointed out the different drainage areas in the vicinity of the 
subject property and explained how the applicant's proposed stormwater management plan 



 16 

would function.  He maintained that adding a second pond as desired by the citizens would not 
capture enough stormwater to justify the grading and tree removal that would be necessary for its 
construction. 
 



 17 

RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC                                                      February 18, 1999 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
 
 
Mr. Baken responded to questions from Commissioner Byers regarding contours of the land; 
from Commissioner Coan regarding the second pond and the rate of discharge from the first 
pond; and from Commissioner Kelso regarding the discharge pipe traversing lot 36. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Harsel, Ms. McNeally said it was unclear who was 
responsible for maintenance of the first pond. 
 
At Commissioner Kelso's request, Mr. Timothy Farabaugh, with Geotechnical Consulting and 
Testing, Inc., explained that a report had not been prepared because it was his intention to tailor 
the report to the final grading plan prepared by the applicant's civil engineer later in the 
development process.  He commented on the hazards of building on marine clay, but said it was 
important to note the location of the clay with respect to the proposed building sites.  He added 
that there were significant gravel and sand layers in the downstream portion of the site that added 
stability to the slopes.  He assured the Commission that his firm was coordinating with the 
applicant's civil engineer, was comfortable with the proposed plan, and expected to receive 
approval from the GRB. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Kelso, Mr. Farabaugh agreed with Mr. Baken that it 
would be counter-productive to remove trees for construction of a second pond. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wilson, Mr. Baken and Ms. McNeally explained 
the traffic pattern around the entrance since there would not be a median break for left turns into 
or out of the site.  Ms. Strobel stated, and Ms. McNeally confirmed, that Condition 2 with FDP 
1998-LE-039 required disclosure of the left turn situation. 
 
In response to further questions from Commissioner Wilson, neither Ms. Strobel nor 
Ms. McNeally could state if the Fire and Rescue Department was aware of the left turn 
circumstance when certifying that the subject property currently met fire protection guidelines as 
noted in Appendix 12 of the staff report.  Commissioner Wilson asked that staff investigate this 
matter more thoroughly and commented that it appeared to be a hazardous traffic situation. 
 
There being no further comments or questions from the Commission and Ms. McNeaIly having 
no closing staff remarks, Vice Chairman Byers closed the public hearing and recognized 
Commissioner Kelso for action on this case.  (A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Kelso MOVED THAT RZ-1998-LE-039 AND FDP-1998-LE-039, 
CARR¬SKYLINE LLC, BE DEFERRED FOR DECISION ONLY UNTIL MARCH 4, 1999, 
WITH THE RECORD REMAINING OPEN FOR WRITTEN COMMENT. 
 
 
 



 18 

RZ-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC                                                      February 18, 1999 
FDP-1998-LE-039 - CARR-SKYLINE LLC 
 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioner 
Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 

CSPA-84-D-049-2 - GGP/HOMART, INC. - Appl. under Sect. 12-210 
of the Zoning Ord. for approval of a Comprehensive Sign Plan 
Amendment for the Galleria at Tysons II development approved in 
RZ-84-D-049 on property located in the N.E. quadrant of the 
intersection of international Dr. & Galleria Dr. on approx. 23.62 ac. 
zoned PDC, SC, & HC.  Tax Map 29-4 ((10))1-C1.  PROVIDENCE 
DISTRICT.  PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Marie Travesky, Travesky and Associates, reaffirmed the affidavit dated January 25, 1999.  
There were no disclosures by Commission members. 
 
Commissioner Coan asked Vice Chairman Byers to ascertain if there were any speakers in the 
audience for this application.  There were none; therefore, Vice Chairman Byers waived the 
presentations of staff and the applicant, closed the public hearing, and recognized Commissioner 
Coan for action on this case.  (A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Coan RECOMMENDED THAT WE APPROVE CSPA-84-D-049-2, SUBJECT 
TO DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED FEBRUARY 18, 1999. 
 
Commissioners Alcorn and Hall seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioner Palatiello not present for the vote; Commissioner Murphy absent from the 
meeting. 
 
// 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:20 p.m.  
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Chairman  
Suzanne F. Harsel, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLOSING                                                                                                        February 18, 1999 
 
 
Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
 

Minutes by: Gloria L. Watkins  
 

Approved on: May 18, 2000 
 
 

        
Mary A. Pascoe, Clerk to the 
Fairfax County Planning Commission 

 19 


